BRI DGTON PLANNI NG BOARD
MEETI NG

Bridgton Court Room May 1, 2007
7:00p. m

The Bridgton Planning Board was called to order at 7:00p.m by Fred
Packard, Chair. Those in attendance were: Fred Packard, Chair; Steve
Collins, Vice Chair; Christopher MDaniel; Gordon Davis; David Diller;
Dee MIler, Alternate; David Lee, Alternate. Absent were: None.

Approval of Mnutes — April 3, 2007 (Regul ar Meeti ng)

Steve notioned to approve the mnutes wth the anendnents as
di scussed. Christopher 2" 3 Approve / 0O Qppose / 2 Abstain (David
Diller and Gordon Davis due to absence for the neeting).

Approval of Mnutes — April 10, 2007 (Public Hearing)

Steve notioned to approve the minutes as presented. Christopher 2.

3 Approve / 0 Oppose / 2 Abstain (David Diller and Gordon Davis due to
absence for the neeting).

Approval of Mnutes — April 23, 2007 (Public Hearing)
Steve notioned to approve the minutes as presented. Christopher 2",

5 Approve / 0 Oppose
OLD BUSI NESS

Harri son Marina/ Davi d Randal |

Route 117/Brickyard H Il Road; Map 19 Lot 43
Show oom repair facility & parking

Revi ew and Accept Fi ndings of Fact

Steve notioned to approve the findings of fact and grant Fred Packard,
Chair, the authority to sign the Findings of Fact and Concl usions of
Law on behal f of the Pl anni ng Board.

Georgiann Fleck, Secretary, said is that formal approval for the
project? Steve said yes.

Fred called for a 2" to the notion. David D. 2". 5 Approve / 0 Oppose
Fred signed the Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law.

Cor nshop Brook Re-Devel opnent Proj ect
Par ki ng Lots

Depot Street; Map 27 Lot 5

Park Street; Map 23 Lot 26 and Lot 27
Revi ew and Accept Findings of Fact



Page 2
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

Steve notioned to grant formal approval to the application as
subm tted and presented and authorize Fred Packard, Chair, to sign the
Fi ndings of Fact and Conclusion of Law on behalf of the Pl anning
Board. Gordon 2" 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

Fred signed the Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law.

Mbunt ai n Lane Subdi vi si on/ Chet Honer
Mount ai n Road; Map 7 Lot 18

Lot Condemnium-Concept 6 Lot Subdi vi sion
Represented by Christopher D Matteo, Sebago Technics

Onens MCul l ough was present representing Sebago Technics. M.

McCul | ough said al so present this evening is Ed Rock from Shawnee Peak
Hol di ngs, Walter Stinson and Rob MSorley both from Sebago Technics.

M. MCullough said the project has been changed several times from a
subdi vi sion to condom nium and we have now changed the project to a 6
| ot subdivision. The lots will be 30,000sf with common septic and
private wells. There will be underground utilities for electric and
t el ephone. We spoke with Russ Martin, DHS plunbing section, and he
has confirnmed that the way we calculated the septic in relation to
lots is correct. W are requesting a waiver from the road standard
requi rements in your Ordinance. W have spoken with the Public Wrks
Director and there is a notation on the plan that neets the specific
| anguage outlined in your Ordinance for nonconform ng road. M.

Homer’'s attorney has prepared a draft association docunent which also
i ncludes specific | anguage regarding buffer maintenance. | have given
you an updated copy of the phosphorous study. W have provided
details on the rain gardens because they allow a big reduction in the
phosphorous. W have included a copy of the federal soils map that we
used. W have provided details of the road on the plan show ng which
BMWP''s they drain to. Sonme of the phosphorous export is based upon the
amount of i npervious surface. Whien we went through the cal cul ations

we specified how nmuch inpervious surface and cleared area will be on
each lot which is noted on the plan and will be recorded with the
registry. On each lot within the subdivision it will contain no nore

than 2,500sf of inpervious surface and 3,500sf of |awn and | andscaped
area which is about 6,000sf total.

Steve said why does the road buffering show hydro soils “A’” but the
HHE200 shows soils “C'? M. MSorley said in relation to the HHE200,
“C’ is a condition and not a soils group. M. MCullough said the
classification for the soils are different than a hyrogeol ogi cal group
classification that we use for stormwater analysis and phosphorous
cal cul ati on.



Page 3
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

Steve said the map you included in your packet is dated 1974 wth
medi um intensity survey, there is a later map that calls them skerry
conditions rather than Hernon soils. M. MSorley said we are not
aware of a later edition.

Steve said on the A-2 Wrksheet where did the .091 factor cone fronf
M. MSorley said if you use a BMP water quality system you are going
to achieve 65% reduction in phosphorous. If you oversize the BMP to
have additional water quality treatnment beyond what is required it
gives you additional treatnent and that is what reduces the treatnent
factor.

Steve said can you explain the underdrain filters? M. MSorley said
lot 1 will get treatnment froma rain garden which will spill over to
the buffer for secondary treatnment. Once the volune has been net for
Lot 2 in the rain garden it will channelize to flow into the other
rain garden and subsequently into the sanme buffer. Lot 3 wll be
treated in the rain garden and once its treatnent has been net it goes
into the roadway swal e and nmakes its way into the buffer for secondary

treat ment. Lot 4 will get treatment through a rain garden and then
into the roadway swale. Lot 5 has a rain garden which flows into the
roadway swale to the turnout and disperses from there. Lot 6 gets

treated by an infiltration bed and then to the buffer.

Fred said is the road going to be paved? M. MCullough said yes,
we have proposed an 18 road wth 3 shoul ders. The waiver we are
asking for is the slope. There is a provision in the Odinance that
allows a waiver for a certain footage and the nonconform ng road
section. Fred said we have wai ved sl ope requirenents for subdivisions
in the past.

Steve said what is typically done to make sure that the erosion
control nethods are followed? M. MCullough said a honmeowner’s

associ ation needs to be established. They set up an escrow account
that the honeowners pay into annually. That noney will be used to pay
for maintenance of each building envelope. It will also be added into

each deed. If the association decides not to mmintain the control
nmet hods the Town can take | egal action against the Association.

Dee said are the buyers going to understand what a rain garden is?
M. MCullough said the Association Docunent is very detailed
regarding buffers, swales and rain gardens. Il wll add another
paragraph that explains what a rain garden is and their inportance.



Page 4
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

Rob Baker, Code Enforcenment O ficer, said who is going to inspect the
rain gardens and buffers? | don’t have the tinme, therefore, does the
Board want to consider a third party inspector to do the inspection
and report back to the Board? M. MCullough said I wll add sone
addi tional |anguage that requires a report to be forwarded to the Code
Enforcenment O ficer.

Steve said does your docunentation stipulate an annual neeting of the
honeowners association in the by-laws because the annual neeting could
trigger the inspection report being forwarded to the Code Enforcenent
Oficer.

Peter Lowel I, Lakes Environnmental Association, said you should
consi der adding sonething to the docunent that would give the Town the
authority to enforce any violation.

Dee said who is going to construct the gardens? M. MCullough said
the two larger infiltration areas, buffers and diversion ditches wll
be built by the devel oper. The rain gardens may be built either by
t he devel oper or the honeowner.

Jan Maczuba, abutter, said | am concerned with the erosion and the
runoff as a result of this devel opnent.

Ctizen, said | am concerned that this devel opnent will have an inpact
on the quality of ny well.

Alice difford, Abutter, said | am concerned with the inpact this
devel opnent will have on the wildlife.

M. Maczuba said if you dig 6 new wells what inpact will this have on
the aquifer? M. MOQllough said we hired Dick Sweet, a well-known
hydr ogeol ogi st as an independent consultant. He reviewed the septic
system design and soils conditions for the site and felt confident
that there would be no downstream inpact from the effluents. Vel s
are a little trickier, however, M. Sweet did not have any

reservations that we would not be able to get water on these sites.
Wells are part of every devel opnent.

David D. said it is wusually |ess expensive to put in conmon water
rat her than common septic, why did you decide on conmobn septic? M.
McCul | ough said it is preference, however, they felt that it would be
better if everyone were responsible for their owm well and how nuch
water they use. Ed Rock, representative for Chet Honer, said common
wells tend to require nore nmai ntenance.



Page 5
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

M chael Hill, legal representative for the abutters, said | disagree
with M. MCullough’s interpretation of non-conformng road. The
definition of a nonconform ng use or structure is sonething which is
legally in existence when the Ordinance took effect. This Board does
not have the authority to grant perm ssion for the devel oper to build
a road that is not conform ng according to your O dinance. You do
have authority to grant sone |imted waivers but there is a nmaxi num
amount that you can grant and an average grade. The only Board that
has authority to grant a variance beyond that is the Zoning Board of

Appeals. M. Hill referenced several court cases (see file).

M. H Il said the street/design standards in your Odinance clearly
refer to public or private road, it is not limted to public roads
that have to neet the grade standards. | don’t think that you can

approve this subdivision the way the road is currently designed.

M. HIl said the abutters have expressed concern regarding the
drai nage and you have testinony before you that this site provides a
tremendous anmount of runoff that has washed out driveways below.  You
have experts that are giving you their opinion but this Board has the
di scretion to decide.

M. MCullough said last year this Board approved several projects
under the prem se of nonconform ng. The Ordinance is clear that the
Pl anning Board and Public Wrks Director has the ability to grant
approval .

M. Rock said our engineers have addressed concerns raised by the
Board and the abutters and therefore | would like this Board to
continue to be consistent with the policy that you have adhered to for
a nunber of years.

M. Hill said the by-laws or declaration should also give the Town of
Bridgton the right to access the property to inspect the buffers etc.
If the homeowner’s association doesn’t provide the information that is
necessary the Town of Bridgton should be able to enforce it with a
penal ty. Fred said our Odinances already have generic |anguage for
that but if they want to add sonmething nore to their docunents that is
their option.

David D. said | would consider a notion to approve this subject to
clarification of the road. Gordon said | have no probl em noving ahead
with an approval wth clarification. Christopher said | agree,

however, both sides have brought up sone good points so let’s find out
if we can waive it. Steve said the non-conform ng road section in our



Page 6
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

Subdi vi si on Regul ati ons has never been challenged but | think we can
approve with conditions.

Fred said if this is appealed it is inportant to know that it wll be
a DeNovo Hearing which neans you start from the beginning. There is
an article coming up in June 07 to change that but it is subject to
approval by the Citizens by referendum

The Board reviewed the criteria for Subdivisions to establish the
Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usion of Law

Fred said we need to have formal witten findings of fact and
conclusion of |aw before we can render a decision to either approve or
di sapprove.

Steve notioned to grant approval of the application subject to
addition of |anguage to the deed restriction as discussed concerning
annual inspection and reporting to the Town of Bridgton for stormater
and phosphorous control features, addition of penalties upon the
property owner in the case of nonconpliance with those stipulations.

Also, to waive stipulation in Article X concerning the maxinmm
al l owabl e slope of the private road. All of this is conditional upon
the Board reviewing the formal finding of fact and conclusion of |aw.

Plan approval is also conditioned upon conpliance by the applicant

with the plans and specifications which have been received by the
Pl anning Board in connection with the devel opnent proposal as well as
with any oral commitnents regarding the project which were
specifically made by the aePIicant to the Board in the course of its
del i ber ati ons. David D. 2"°. 5 Approve / 0 Qppose

Sandy Creek Estates/H |l Top Land Devel opment
Swanp Road & W I dwood Road; Map 9 Lot 16

6 Lot Subdi vision

Represented by Ronald |I. Keniston

M. Keniston said we have shown a couple of options of how bio
retention cells will be installed. As noted on the plan they will be
| ocated down gradient and at |least 8 from the building according to
the house design and driveway. We have also included a rain garden
| ayout and how they need to be designed and naintained. This wll be
installed by the honeowner or contractor. A test pit was established
on lot #6. W reference the BMPs and St ormiat er managenent Vol une one
regarding the rain garden |ayouts and also what can be planted within
the rain garden that would be suitable. We have driveways going
through the 25 buffer zone and it was suggested that we add a comrent
to allowthe utility line. W have restricted the driveway lengths to



Page 7
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

100" on five lots. We enclosed in the packet suggested |anguage for
long term inspection and naintenance plan which is the honeowner’s
responsi bility.

The Board reviewed the criteria for Subdivisions to establish the
Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usion of Law.

Steve notioned to approve the project as submtted and presented
conditional upon the inclusion of the phosphorous and stormater
mtigation as represented this evening. Pl an approval is also
condi ti oned upon conpliance by the applicant with the plans and
specifications which have been received by the Planning Board in
connection with the developnent proposal as well as with any oral
comm tnents regarding the project which were specifically nmade by the
applicant to the Board in the course of its deliberations. This is
al so conditioned upon review and approval of the formal findings of
fact and conclusions of |aw. Gordon 2". 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

*M. Keniston said does the Board want to sign the nylar. Steve said
we should wait until we review and sign the formal findings. M.
Baker concurred.

NEW BUSI NESS

Water Works Car Wash/ Todd Sawyer

110 Portland Road; Map 9 Lot 56

Commer ci al Car Wash

Represented by Tom Duboi s, Min-Land Devel opnent

M. Dubois said this is a proposal to build a car wash at property

owned by MIton and Diana Allen on Portland Street. The existing
apartnment building will be razed. The car wash will be just a little
under 3,000sf and wll consist of one automatic bay and four nmanua

drive-through bays with brushes and hoses, an office and utility room
with vacuuns in the rear. There will also be a 1,500 gallon holding
tank for the single enployee bathroom facility. The project is a
closed loop system which mneans there is no wastewater disposal

associated wth facility. The water will be recycled and reused as
part of the wash, the rinse wll be clean water. The Maine DEP is

under a noratorium for in-ground waste disposal of car wash facilities
so that is why we are proposing a closed |loop facility. There is one
smal |l entrance and a large entrance as a result of review and approva
by DOT. W are increasing the inpervious area by about 13,000sf for a
total of 23,000sf. To control that we are sloping the site to either
side of the facility and putting in bio retention cells with an



Page 8
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

underdrain going to a culvert discharge pipe. The discharge |ocation
is in the road side ditches.

Steve said is this the sane as the Wndham car wash? M. Dubois said
it is simlar to the South Paris facility.

Fred said DOT didn't require nore? M. Dubois said traffic inpact for
car washes are not significant so we did not need a traffic inpact
anal ysi s.

Dee said what are the hours of operation? M. Dubois said the self
service bays are open 24 hours. The automatic bay opens when you
i nsert noney.

Dee said will there be an attendant? M. Dubois said not all the
tinme.

David D. said how does the recycled water system work? M. Dubois

said it is a packaged treatnent plant. You are treating the water
chemcally to extract the greases, oils and grit and continue to
clarify it through the system and then reuse the water. There are
tanks that need to be punped out three to four times a year. The
material punped out will be transported to The Portland Water District
Facility.

David D. said are you aware of any odors that mght result fromthis
systen? M. Dubois said no, we have talked with sone owners who are
currently operating 100% recycle facilities and have not had odor
issues or have had them and were able to solve them through
nodi fications to the treatnment facility.

Fred said you submtted a sound |evel study and it appears your |evels
neet our criteria. M. Dubois said it's according to how you
interpret your O dinance. Your Ordinance reads “to abutting
properties or nearest residence” and the nearest residence is
approxi mately 400 away. W registered 6ldba 47° from the proposed
car wash facility.

Steve said what is your setback from the Right of Way? M. Dubois
said ny interpretation of your Odinance was 50, however, M. Baker
interpreted it differently. As a conprom se we held the same di stance
fromthe highway as the existing buil ding.

Steve said what is the size of your sign? M. Dubois said 44x70
Fred said are you planning on | andscapi ng around the sign? M. Dubois



Page 9
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

said we need to work with DOT for placenment of the sign but we wll
| andscape the base of the sign.

Christopher said will the outside blowers be on even if soneone goes
to wash their car late at night? M. Dubois said yes but only if
sonmeone pays for that use. Fred said are they inside the closed

doors? M. Dubois said no, they are outside that is why we nmade it a
point to say that the residence is 400" away and our sound |evels at
400" are well bel ow your requirenents.

Dee said is the sign going to be |it? M. Dubois said yes, direct
lighting fromthe base.

The Board reviewed the criteria for Site Plan of Developnment to
establish the Findings of Fact and Concl usion of Law.

Gordon notioned to approve the project as submtted and presented
subject to review and approval of the formal findings and concl usions
of law. Plan approval is also conditioned upon conpliance by the
applicant with the plans and specifications which have been received
by the Planning Board in connection with the devel opnent proposal as
well as with any oral commtnents regarding the project which were
specifically made by the applicant to the Board in the course of its
deliberations. David D. 2". 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

*M. Keniston said M. G bbons has a question regarding signing the
nyl ar . M. G bbons said when was there a change in procedure as to
when a project is approved and a nylar signed? Fred said if we signed
the nylar without formal findings that is an appealable issue if
sonmeone did file an appeal .

Gordon said would it be possible that when the findings are conplete
we conme in and sign themwth the nylar? Ms. Fleck said the findings
have to be revi ewed and approved by the whol e Board.

Steve notioned to schedule a special neeting for My 15, 2007 at
7:00p.m to review Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for
projects that were presented this evening. Christopher 2".

5 Approve / 0 Oppose

H ghl and Ri dge Preschool/Erica L. Chute & Meghan Sti ehl er
WIllet Road; Map 9 Lot 51

Child Care Facility

Represented by Erica Lowell Chute



Page 10
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

We operate an in-hone daycare and are licensed for up to 12 children.
We have been in operation for three years. As | have provided in our
application we have a three phase business plan and we are now ready
to inplenent the first phase which includes noving our business out of
ny basenent and into a new |location. As a result, we plan to relocate
to a hone located off The WIlet Road W would not change the
exterior or the interior of the house except for small nodifications
such as painting or safety for the children. W wll probably instal
a swing set and depending upon the requirenents of the state we may
need to install a fence that would separate the children’s play area
fromthe streamthat borders the property.

Fred said is the home owmmed by M. and Ms. Flint? M. Chute said yes
and a representative is present on behalf of Flint Fam |y Partners.

Ms. Chute said we are not going to have any signs because we
personally feel that we don’t want to advertise that we have snal
children at that |ocation, however, the property will be nmarked for
emer gency access.

Christopher said will this business be year round? M. Chute said no.
W currently operate from Septenber to the end of May, we follow the
school year taking the same vacations, however, next sumrer we woul d
like to include sonme sort of a summer program for children ages 4-6
and work together with Lakes Environmental Association to provide sone
nature/ art opportunities.

Fred said the HHE200 you provided in your application is that
necessary? Ms. Chute said no, only if needed.

Fred said does this neet the state licensing division? M. Chute said
| spoke with them yesterday and they are in the process of setting up
a visit to the site. It is contingent upon your acceptance and state
regul ati ons once they make a site visit.

Steve said do you anticipate they are going to comment on a fence
because of the brook? M. Chute said yes.

The Board reviewed the criteria for Site Plan of Developnment to
establish the Findings of Fact and Concl usi on of Law.

Steve notioned to approve the project as submtted and presented
subject to review and approval of the formal findings of fact and
concl usion of |aw Pl an approval is also conditioned upon conpliance
by the applicant with the plans and specifications which have been
recei ved by the Planning Board in connection with the devel opnent



Page 11
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

proposal as well as with any oral commtnents regarding the project
which were specifically nmade by the applicant to the Board in the
course of its deliberations.

Approved Applications as per Bridgton Site Plan Review Odinance
4. A 1.

Bridgton Cl eani ng Conpany/ d en Pl ante
28 Col ony Lane; Map 11 Lot 17A
Resi dence & C eani ng Busi ness

Warner ‘n’ Quinby Auto Care/Dal e Qui nby
527 Portland Road; Map 6 Lot 4A
Auto Repair Facility

Wts End Child Care & Community Resources/ Darcey Pomerl| eau
224 Portland Road; Map 10 Lot 15B-1
Child Care Facility

Uni quely Yours/Alice Saunders & Lee Zulick
90 Kinmball Road; Map 19 Lot 21A
Resi dence & Craft Supplies

Fred said | would like to bring to the attention of the Board some of
the requests being nade by the Fire Chief on his inpact statenents, in
particul ar Knox Boxes. Qur Odinances do not require specific fire
related itenms |ike Knox Boxes, therefore, it nust be a recomrendation
not a requirenment. The Planning Board can’'t require it, therefore, a
Departnent Head can’t require nore than the Planning Board. This is a
private conpany that is being recommended.

Ms. Fleck said as an FYl | have given you a copy of the mps of
noderate & high value wetlands, the 2007 budget and ATM schedul e and
the 2007 Town Meeting Candidates to date. Fred said | would like to
mention on the wetlands map from DEP the gross errors in the
del i neation of the wetlands and bird habitat.

Last nonth you decided to have a workshop at sone point to discuss
sone potential changes to The Site Plan Review O di nance and Shorel and
Zoning O di nance. | have provided you wth a neno wth sone
addi ti onal changes to the Site Plan Review Ordinance | would like the
Board to discuss at that tine.



Page 12
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
May 1, 2007

Christopher said | have been asked about the status of a portion of
the North Road and its status as a town road. The census of the Board
was the individual inquiring should submt a letter of concern to the
Board of Sel ect nen.

Steve notioned to adjourn the nmeeting at 10:45p.m David D. 2",
5 Approve / 0 Oppose

Respectful ly subm tted,

Georgi ann M Fl eck
Muni ci pal Secretary



